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To the Honorable Jason Ard 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Ex-Officio Parish Tax Collector 
Livingston Parish, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fimd, and the 
aggregate remaining fiind information of the Livingston Parish Sheriff (the "Sheriff') as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Sheriffs basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accoimting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to firaud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of Ameriea and the standards 
applieable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Livingston Parish Sheriff as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 19 to the financial statements, in 2018, the Sheriff adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASBS No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 8-15 and 59-60, as well as, the schedule 
of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios on page 61, the schedule of Sheriff's OPEB contributions on 
page 62, the schedule of OPEB investment returns on page 63, the schedule of proportionate share of the net 
pension liability on page 64, and the schedule of contributions on page 65 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the 
Sheriff's basic financial statements. The schedule of changes in balances due to taxing bodies and others -
fiduciary agency funds, the tax collector account affidavit, and the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other 
payments to agency head (all listed as Other Supplemental Information in the table of contents), are presented for 
the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules listed as Other Supplemental Information in the table of contents are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules listed as 
Other Supplemental Information in the table of contents are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In aeeordanee with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Deeemher 28, 2018, on 
our eonsideration of the Sheriff s internal eontrol over finaneial reporting and on our tests of its eomplianee with 
eertain provisions of laws, regulations, eontraets, and grant agreements and other matters. The pmpose of that 
report is to deseribe the seope of our testing of internal eontrol over finaneial reporting and eomplianee and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal eontrol over finaneial reporting or on eomplianee. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in aeeordanee with Government Auditing Standards in 
eonsidering the Sheriff s internal eontrol over finaneial reporting and eomplianee. 

Bruee Harrell & Company, CPAs 
A Professional Aeeounting Corporation 
Kentwood, Louisiana 

Deeemher 28, 2018 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Introduction 

As management of the Livingston Parish Sheriff, Livingston, Louisiana, we offer readers of the Sheriff's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Sheriff for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018. This management discussion and analysis ("MD&A") is designed to provide an objective and easy 
to read analysis of the Livingston Parish Sheriffs financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, or 
conditions. It is intended to provide readers with a broad overview of the Sheriffs finances. It is also intended to 
provide readers with an analysis of the Sheriffs short-term and long-term activities based on information 
presented in the financial report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by the Sheriff. Specifically, this section 
is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Livingston 
Parish Sheriffs financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), identify any 
material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

As with other sections of this financial report, the information contained within this MD&A should be considered 
only a part of a greater whole. The readers of this statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of 
this report, including the footnotes and the other Required Supplemental Information ("RSI") that is provided in 
addition to this MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

• The Sheriffs government wide assets exceeded its liabilities by $103,917 (net position). Of this amount, 
($7,276,292) (unrestricted) may be used to meet the Sheriffs ongoing obligations to the Parish. An 
amount of $7,379,693 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

• For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Sheriffs total government wide net position increased by 
$2,149,084. 

• At June 30, 2018, the Sheriffs governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $9,426,821, an 
increase of $780,395 for the year. The total amount, $9,426,305 is available for spending at the Sheriffs 
discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

Overview of the Annual Financial Report 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Livingston Parish Sheriffs financial 
statements. The Livingston Parish Sheriffs basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Livingston Parish Sheriff's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position (formerly reported as statement of net assets) presents information on all of the 
Livingston Parish Sheriff's assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The difference between the 
assets and the liabilities is reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Livingston Parish Sheriff is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 - 18 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The Livingston Parish Sheriff, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related and legal requirements. All of the 
funds of the Sheriff can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term effects of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The Livingston Parish Sheriff maintains one individual governmental fund. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, 
which is considered to be a major fund. 

The Livingston Parish Sheriff adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement for the major fund has been provided herein to demonstrate compliance with the budget. The basic 
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 and 22 of this report. 
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As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources 
of those funds are not available to support the Livingston Parish Sheriff's own programs. The Sheriff reports its 
Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund as a fiduciary fund, and has three agency funds, including the Sheriff's 
Fund, Tax Collector Fund, and Inmate Deposit Fund. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 - 27 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be 
found on pages 28 - 60 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information. These can be found on page 61 through 65 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The 
following table provides a summary of the Sheriff's net position for the current year as compared to the prior 
year. For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position on page 17 of this report. 

Net Position 
2018 and2017 

Governmental Activities 

2018 2017 
Assets: (Restated) 

Current and Other Assets $ 12,515,210 $ 11,162,810 

Capital Assets 9,059,693 9,692,781 

Total Assets 21,574,903 20,855,591 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,759,781 6,506,983 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 26,334,684 27,362,574 

Liabilities: 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 20,257,708 25,616,107 

Other Liabilities 2,265,607 2,292,025 

Total Liabilities 22,523,315 27,908,132 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,707,452 1,499,609 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 26,230,767 29,407,741 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,379,693 2,646,514 

Restricted 516 110 

Unrestricted (7,276,292) (4,691,791) 

Total Net Position $ 103,917 $ (2,045,167) 

10 
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One of the largest portions of the Livingston Parish Sheriff's net position reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding. The Livingston Parish Sheriff uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Livingston Parish 
Sheriff's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Livingston Parish Sheriff is able to report a positive balance in the 
investment in capital assets category of net position, but there was a deficient balance in unrestricted net position 
due to the implementation of GASB Statements 75. The Sheriff was able to report positive balances in all 
categories of fund balance in the separate governmental activities. 

The Sheriff's activities increased its total net position by $(2,149,084) during the current fiscal year. 

In order to further understand what makes up the changes in net position, the table on the following page provides 
a summary of the results of the Sheriff's activities for the current year as compared to the prior year. An analysis 
of the primary sources of these changes follows the table. For more detailed information, see the Statement of 
Activities on page 18 of this report. 

11 
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Changes in Net Position 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
Governmental Activities Variance 

2018 2017 Amount Percentage 

Revenues: (Restated) 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 4,423,098 $ 3,972,702 3 > 450,396 11% 

Operating Grants and Contributions 2,011,437 2,940,185 (928,748) -32% 

Capital Grants and Contributions 102,084 63,058 39,026 62% 

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes 11,347,931 10,817,956 529,975 5% 

Sales T axes 9,470,131 10,932,230 (1,462,099) -13% 

Int ergov emment al 3,913,910 3,902,444 11,466 -
Interest Income 97,510 66,207 31,303 47% 

Miscellaneous 1,817,964 1,983,391 (165,427) -8% 

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets (180,938) 201,502 (382,440) -190% 

Total Revenues 33,003,127 34,879,675 (1,876,548) -5% 

Ejqjenses: 

Public Safety 30,854,043 34,928,971 (4,074,928) -12% 

Total Ejqjenses 30,854,043 34,928,971 (4,074,928) -12% 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,149,084 (49,296) 2,198,380 4460% 

Net Position - Beginning 6,415,516 6,464,812 (49,296) -1% 

Prior Period Adjustments-Note 19 (8,460,683) (8,460,683) - -

Net Position - Beginning (Restated) (2,045,167) (1,995,871) (49,296) 2% 

Net Position, Ending $ 103,917 $ . (2,045,167) 3 B 2,149,084 -105% 

12 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities increased the Livingston Parish Sheriff's net position by $2,149,084. Key elements of 
this change in net position as shown on the previous page are as follows: 

• Sales taxes decreased $1,462,098 or 13 percent in 2018. 
• Operating grants decreased $928,748 or 32 percent in 2018. 
• Capital grants increased by $39,026 or 62 percent in 2018. 
• Expenditures decreased by $4,074,928 or 12 percent in 2018. 

Fund Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, the Sheriff uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Sheriff's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Sheriff's financing requirements. 
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Sheriff's net resources available 
for spending at the end of the year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Livingston Parish Sheriff. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, total fund balance of the general fund was $9,426,821, an increase of $780,395. The amount of 
$9,426,305 constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's 
discretion. The amount of $516 is restricted for debt service. 

As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total 
fund operating expenditures plus other financing uses totaling $31,012,839. 

Major Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The actual amounts of revenues for the major funds were more than the final budget by $1,206,858. 

13 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

The Livingston Parish Sheriff's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2018, 
amounted to $9,059,693 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
construction in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. 

The following table provides a summary of the Sheriff's capital assets (net of depreciation) at the end of the 
current year as compared to the prior year. For more detailed information, see Note 5 to the financial statements 
on page 39 of this report. 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

2018 and 2017 

Governmental Activities Increase 
Percentage 

Incre as e 
Capital Assets 2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease) 

Land 3 > 381,958 $ 381,958 ; S -

Buildings and Tower 5,801,988 5,644,088 157,900 3% 

Equ^ment and Furniture 4,163,105 5,054,962 (891,857) -18% 

Vehicles 6,960,373 6,565,966 394,407 6% 

Subtotal Capital Assets 17,307,424 17,646,974 (339,550) -2% 

Less: Acctunulated Depreciation (8,247,731) (7,954,193) 293,538 4% 

Capital Assets, Net 3 > 9,059,693 $ 9,692,781 : S (633,088) -7% 

Long Term Debt 

At the end of the fiscal year, the Sheriff had long term debt consisting of revenue bonds, net OPEB liability, and 
net pension liability in the amount of $20,972,708. For more detailed information on Revenue Bonds Payable see 
Note 13 to the financial statements on page 51 of this report. 

Outstanding Debt 
2018 and 2017 

Gove rnnie ntal Activitie s 

Debt backed by the Government 

Revenue Bonds 

Subtotal of Debt backed by the Government 

Other long term Indebtedness 

Net OPEB Liability 

Net Pension Liability 
Subtotal Other long term Indebtedness 

Total Long Term Debt 

2018 2017 
(Restate d) 

6,245,000 : S 6,960,000 

6,245,000 6,960,000 

5,592,844 7,393,234 

9,134,864 11,977,873 

14,727,708 19,371,107 

. 20,972,708 I S 26,331,107 

14 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The following factors were considered in preparing the Livingston Parish Sheriff's budget for the 2018 fiscal 
year: 

• The two major revenue sources for the general fund are ad valorem taxes and sales and use taxes. 
Ad valorem tax increased by $529,975 between 2017 and 2018. 

• Sales tax revenues decreased by approximately $1,462,099 between 2017 and 2018. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Livingston Parish Sheriff's finances for all 
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report for June 30, 2018, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Jamie Felder, 
Chief Fiscal Officer of the Livingston Parish Sheriff, at (225) 686-2241. 

15 
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Livingston Parish SherifT 
Statement of Net Position 

As of June 30, 2018 

State me nt A 

Primary 
Gove mine nt 

Gove rnme ntal 

Activities 
Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables, Net: 

Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets: 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Total Restricted Assets 

Capital Assets: 

Land 
Capital Assets, Net 

Total Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows: 
Pension Related 
OPEB Related 

Total Deferred Outflows 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 

Accrued Interest Payable 

Other Accrued Payables 

EXie to Livirgston Parish Library 
Current Portion of Long Term Indebtedness 

Bonds Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long Term Liabilities: 
Bonds Payable 

Net OPEB Liability 

Net Pension Liability 
Total Long Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows: 
Pension Related 
OPEB Related 

Total Deferred Inflows 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

8,517,647 
3,997,047 

12.514.694 

516 
516 

381,958 
8,677,735 
9,059,693 

21.574.903 

4,756,310 
3,471 

4,759,781 

26.334.684 

429,177 
77,667 

395,490 
648,273 

715,000 
2.265.607 

5,530,000 
5,592,844 
9,134,864 

20,257,708 

22.523.315 

1,884,477 
1,822,975 
3.707.452 

7,379,693 
516 

(7,276,292) 
103.917 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position $ 26.334.684 

17 



Statement B 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Statement of Activities 

For the yearended June 30, 2018 

Program Re ve nues 

Net (Expenses) 
Revenues and 

Changes in Net 
Assets 
Primaiy 

Operating Capital Grants Government 
Chaises for Grants & & Governmental 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities 
Governmental Activities 

Public Safely $ (30,854,043) $ 1 4,423,098 J S 2,011,437 : $ 102,084 $ (24,317,424) 

Total Governmental Activities (30,854,043) 4,423,098 2,011,437 102,084 (24,317,424) 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes 

Sales Taxes 

Intergovernmental 
For Sipport ofPrisoners 

State Revenue Sharing 

Investment Eamirgs 

OnBehalfPayments - State SipplementalPay 

MisceUaneoiB 

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 
Total General Revenues and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

11,347,931 

9,470,131 

3,224,112 

689,798 

97,510 

809,396 

1,008,568 
(180,938) 

26,466,508 

2.149.084 

Net Position - Beginning 
Prior Period AdjiBtments (Note 19) 

Net Position - Beginning (Restated) 

Net Position - Ending 

The acconparying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

6,415,516 
(8,460,683) 

(2,045,167) 

103.917 

18 
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statement C 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Balance Sheet, Governmental Funds 
As of June 30,2018 

General Fund 

Assets 
Cash and Equivalents $ 8,517,647 
Receivables, Net: 

Due from Other Governments 3,997,047 
Restticted Cash 516 

Total Assets $ 12,515,210 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows ofResources, and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 428,005 
Other Accrued Liabilities 1,172 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 395,490 
Due to Other Governments 648.273 

Total Liabilities 1.472. 

Deferred Inflows ofResources: 
Unavailable Revenue 1.615.449 

Total Deferred Inflows ofResources: 1.615.449 

Fund Balances: 
Restticted 516 
Unassigned 9,426,305 

Total Fund Balances 9.426.821 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balances $ 12,515,210 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

20 



statement D 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Government-Wide Financial Statement of Net Position 

As of June 30, 2018 

Amoimts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different 

because: 

Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds (Statement C) $ 9,426,821 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are 

therefore not reported in the governmental fimds. 

Governmental capital assets net of depreciation 9,059,693 

Certain revenues are deferred inflows in the fimd financial statements until they are 
considered available to finance current ejq^enditures, but these revenues are recognized 

when they are assessed in the government wide financial statements. 1,615,449 

Deferred Outflows-Pension Related 4,756,310 

Deferred Outflows-OPKR Related 3,471 

Interest payable used in the governmental activities is not payable fi"om current 

resources and therefore is not reported in the Governmental Funds (77,667) 

General Long-term liabilities of governmental activities, including bonds payable, are not 

due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 

Governmental fund. These liabilities are: 

Bonds Payable (6,245,000) 

Net Pension Liability (9,134,864) 
Deferred Inflows-Pension Related (1,884,477) 

The liability associated with the net unfunded long-term Other Post Employment Benefit 

Obligation Asset is also not payable in the current period. Therefore, the amount is not 

reported in the Governmental fund. 

Net Pension Liability (5,592,844) 

Deferred Inflows-OPEB Related (1,822,975) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement A) $ 103,917 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Statement E 

Revenues 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 

Sales and Use 

Inteigovemmental 

Grants 

Sipport of Prisoners 

State Revenue Sharing 

Service Contract Revenue 

Fines, Forfeitures and Other Fees 

Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

On Behalf Payments - State Sipplemental Pay 

Total Revenues 

General Rind 

11,347,931 

9,470,131 

686,314 

3,226,563 

689,798 

1,275,066 

3,148,032 

97,510 
1,006,117 

809,396 

31.756.858 

Expenditures 

Public Safety 

Personal Services and Related Benefits 

Salaries 

Efrployee Benefits 

Travel & Training 

Operating Services 

Professional Services 

Materials and SippHes 

Other Equipment (Non-Capitalized) 

Total Public Safety 

Capital Outlays 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (Expenditures) 

14,217,413 
7,505,412 
262,872 

3,708,776 
854,887 

2,505,401 

29,054,761' 

973,378 

715,000 
269,700 

31,012,839 

744.019 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds fi'om Sale of Capital Assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
36.376 

36.376 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning 

Fund Balances, Ending 

780.395 

8.646.426 

9.426.821 

The accorrparying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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statement F 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
For the year ended June 30,2018 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different 
because: 

Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds, Statement E $ 780,395 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities the cost ofthese assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded 
depreciation in the current period net of the gain on the sale of capital assets, which also is 
not reflected in the fund basis financial statements. 

Expenditures for capital assets $ 973,378 
Less: 

Loss on sale of capital assets (180,938) 
Proceeds fi"omthe sale of capital assets (36,376) 
Current year depreciation (1,389,152) 

Certain revenues are deferred inflows in the fund financial statements until they are 
considered available to finance current expenditures, but such revenues are recogni^d 
when assessed in the government-wide financial statements. 

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, leases, etc.) provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment ofthe princpal of long-term debt consumes the 
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither ttansaction however has any 
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, 
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect ofthese 
differences in the tteataient of long-term debt and related items. 

Bond Repayment of Princpal 715,000 

(633,088) 

589.823 

715,000 

Interest Expense reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of current 
financial resources and is therefore not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 8,600 

(Increases) or decreases in the unfunded post-errployment benefit obligations for medical 
and life insurance netted against the assets in trust to fund those estimated liabilities in future 
periods are not recorded for governmental funds on the fund basis. ^ ̂  114') 

Non-errployer conttibutions to cost-sharing pensionplan 837,384 

Pension Expense (129,916) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities, Statement B $ 2,149,084 

The accorrpanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Basic Financial Statements 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 

As of June 30, 2018 

Statement G 

Trust Fund Agency Funds 

Retired 
Employees 

Benefit Fund 
Sheriffs 

Fund 

Tax 
Collector 

Fund 

Inmate 
Deposit 

Fund 
Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,939 3 > 1,164,354 $ 706,102 $ 83,879 

Total Current Assets 7,939 1,164,354 706,102 83,879 

Restticted Assets: 
Investinents 8,399,481 

Total Restiicted Assets 8,399,481 - - -

Total Assets $ 8,407,420 $ 1,164,354 $ 706,102 $ 83,879 

Liabilities 
Held for taxing bodies and others $ - $ 1,164,354 $ 706,102 $ 83,879 

Total Liabilities 3 > 1,164,354 $ 706,102 $ 83,879 

Net Position 

Restricted for OPEB 

Unrestticted 

Total Net Position 

8,399,481 

7,939 

8.407.420 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement H 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Statement of Changes in Net Position - Fiduciaiy Trust Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Trust Fund 
Retired 

Employees Benefit 

Fund 
Additions 

Investment Interest $ 377,952 
Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments 131,757 

Total Additions 509,709 

Deductions 
Investment E^enses 37,977 

Miscellaneous E^enses 4,615 

Total Deductions 42,592 

Change in Net Position 467,117 

Net Position - Beginning 7,940,303 

Net Position - Ending $ 8,407,420 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Introduction 

As provided by Article V. Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, the Livingston Parish Sheriff 
serves a four-year term as the chief executive officer of the law enforcement district and ex-officio tax 
collector of the Parish of Livingston, Louisiana. The Sheriff administers the parish jail system and 
exercises duties required by the parish court system, such as providing bailiffs, executing orders of the 
court, and serving subpoenas. 

As the chief law enforcement officer of the parish, the Sheriff has the responsibility for enforcing state 
and local laws and ordinances within the territorial boundaries of the parish. The Sheriff provides 
protection to the residents of the parish through on-site patrols and investigations and serves the residents 
of the parish through the establishment of the neighborhood watch programs, and anti-drug abuse 
programs. Additionally, the Sheriff, when requested, provides assistance to other law enforcement 
agencies within the parish. 

As the ex-officio tax collector of the parish, the Sheriff is responsible for collecting and distributing ad 
valorem property taxes, parish occupational licenses, state revenue sharing funds, sportsman's licenses 
and fines, costs and bond forfeitures imposed by the district court. 

The Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the Sheriff includes all funds, account groups and activities that are 
controlled by the Sheriff as an independently elected parish official. As an independently elected parish 
official, the Sheriff is solely responsible for the operations of his office, which include the hiring and 
retention of the employees, authority over budgeting, responsibility for deficits, and the receipt and 
disbursement of funds. The Sheriff is financially independent, other than certain operating expenditures 
of the Sheriff's office that are paid or provided by the parish council as required by Louisiana Law. 
Accordingly, the Sheriff is a separate governmental reporting entity. 

Certain units of local government which the Sheriff exercises no oversight responsibility such as the 
parish government, parish school board, other independently elected parish officials and municipalities 
within the parish, are excluded from the accompanying financial statements. These units of government 
are considered separate reporting entities and issue financial statements separate from those of the Sheriff. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Livingston Parish Sheriff have been prepared in 
conformity with governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

These financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments. Statement No. 34 
established standards for financial reporting, with presentation requirements originally including a 
statement of net assets (or balance sheet), a statement of activities, and a statement of cash flows. The 
definition and composition of these statements, as originally defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as 
amended by GASB Statements included in the following paragraphs. The Sheriff has also adopted the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions, that require capital contributions to the Sheriff to be presented as a change in net position. 

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, effective for financial statement periods ending after December 15, 2012, 
provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net 
position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements 
of Financial Statements, introduced and defined Deferred Outflows of Resources as a consumption of net 
assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources as an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, 
respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial 
statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. GASB Concepts Statement 4 identifies 
net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position. This 
Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements— 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other 
pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into 
the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net 
position, rather than net assets. The definition and reporting of net position is further described in 
Footnote I —Net Position. As required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the 
Sheriff implemented GASB Statement No. 63 during the year ending December 31, 2012. The Sheriff had 
deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB of $4,759,781 and deferred inflows related to 
pension and OPEB of $3,707,452 at June 30, 2018. 

The Sheriff has also adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain 
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of nets assets and the statement of changes 
in net assets) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. As a general rule, 
the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental fiinds, proprietary fimds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the later are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are presented as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as 
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with 
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are susceptible 
to accrual (i.e., when they become measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Ad valorem taxes and the related state revenue 
sharing are recorded in the year taxes are due and payable. Intergovernmental revenues and fees, and 
charges and commissions for services are recorded when the Sheriff is entitled to the funds. Interest on 
interest-bearing deposits is recorded or accrued as revenues when earned. Substantially all other revenues 
are recorded when the Sheriff is entitled to the funds. 

Expenditures, including capital outlays, are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. When 
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Sheriff's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned or unassigned 
fund balances are available, the Sheriff considers amounts to have been spent out of committed funds, 
then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed, unless the Sheriff has provided otherwise in 
his commitment or assignment actions. 

The Sheriff reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the Sheriff's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The following fiduciary funds are reported separately: 

Trust Fund 
Retired Employees Benefit Fund: This fund accounts for the resources that are held in trust 
for the members and beneficiaries of the Sheriff's other post-employment benefit plan. 

Agency Funds 
Sheriff's Fund, Tax Collector Fund, and the Inmate Deposit Fund\ The agency funds are used 
as depositories for civil suits, cash bonds, taxes, fees, and inmate monies. Disbursements 
from these funds are made to various parish agencies, litigants in suits, inmates, or deputies 
as prescribed by law. The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

do not involve measurement of results of operations. Consequently, the agency funds have 
no measurement focus, but use the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

The Sheriff's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type. Since 
by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government wide 
statements. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Sheriff's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available for use, the Sheriff 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of restricted funds, committed funds, then assigned funds, 
and finally unassigned funds as needed, unless the Sheriff has provided otherwise in commitment or 
assignment actions. 

C. Budget Practices 

The proposed budget for the year ended June 30, 2018, was made available for public inspection and 
comments from taxpayers at the Sheriff's Office during June 2017. The proposed budget, per the June 
16, 2017, public notice was available for public inspection Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
The public notice also noted that all interested parties may be present at 10:00 a.m., at the Sheriff's Office 
on June 20,2017, to express their views concerning the Sheriff's Fiscal Budget. The budget is legally 
adopted and amended, as necessary, by the Sheriff. 

All expenditure appropriations lapse at year-end. Unexpended appropriations and any excess of revenues 
over expenditures are carried forward to the subsequent year as beginning fund balance. 

Encumbrance accounting is not used. However, the budget is integrated into the accounting records, 
which allows monthly comparison of budget and actual amounts. Budget amounts included in the 
accompanying financial statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. 

D. Deposits and Investments 

The Sheriff's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, time 
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. State law and the Sheriff's investment policy allow the Sheriff to invest in collateralized 
certificates of deposit, government-backed securities, commercial paper, the state-sponsored investment 
pool, and mutual funds consisting solely of government-backed securities. 

Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statutes and the Sheriff's Investment Policy. Investments 
held by the Sheriff at June 30, 2018, were limited to investments for Other Post-Employee Benefits 
(OPEB) invested per the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statute 33:5162 and consisted of funds 
invested in a newly created investment trust account. Investments, when held, are reported at fair market 
value. 

E. Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes and the related state revenue sharing, which is based on population and homesteads in 
the parish, are recorded in the year taxes are assessed. Ad valorem taxes are assessed and become due on 
November fifteenth of each year and become delinquent on December thirty-first. The taxes are generally 
collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year. The ad valorem 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

tax was assessed pursuant to an election on April 9, 1977, with the tax assessed in perpetuity at an 
original assessment of an additional fifteen (15) mills on all property subject to taxation. 

Federal and state grants are recorded when the law enforcement district is entitled to the funds. Sales and 
use tax revenues are collected by the Livingston Parish School Board and are recognized by the law 
enforcement district as revenue in the month the tax is collected. The Sheriff receives a half a cent parish-
wide sales tax to help cover the cost of operating expenses, which does not expire. The current sales tax 
of one-half of one percent was approved by election on March 10, 1992, and was approved in perpetuity. 
On April 23, 2005, voters approved a re-dedication and use for a limited time an amount equal to 72% of 
the proceeds of the one-half percent sales and use tax collected within the boundaries of the Denham 
Springs Economic Development District for the payment of debt service on sales tax increment revenue 
bonds issued to finance a Bass Pro retail outlet and related improvements and infrastructure. The 1995 
rededication of sales and use taxes within the Denham Springs Economic Development is to continue 
until the bonds remain outstanding. The balance of 28% of the sales and use tax remains payable to the 
Livingston Law Enforcement District, with the percentage increasing to 100% as the bonds are paid in 
full. The sales tax revenue is recorded in the month it was collected. Interest on investments and all other 
revenues are recorded when the income is measurable and available. 

F. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and vehicles, are reported in the applicable 
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are 
recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Sheriff 
maintains a threshold level of $3,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

When surplus items are sold for an immaterial amount after being declared un-needed for public 
purposes, no salvage value is utilized for depreciation purposes. The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset's lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. All capital 
assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Description Estimated Lives 
Buildings & Tower 40 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 Years 
Vehicles 5 Years 
Equipment 5-20 Years 

G. Compensated Absences 

The Sheriff has the following policy related to vacation and personal (sick) leave: 

Vacation. Paid vacation is a benefit of employment given to eligible employees of LPSO. For purposes 
of this policy, "eligible employees" are those employees who are regularly employed to work more than 
30 hours per week for the LPSO and who have completed one uninterrupted year of service with LPSO. 

Each year all eligible employees are granted up to four weeks of vacation depending on the number of 
years employed. All vacation time must be taken during the fiscal year in which it is due. Any unused 
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vacation is forfeited at the year end of each fiscal year and employees will not be compensated for unused 
vacation upon separation of employment. 

Personal (Sick) Leave. Paid personal leave is a benefit of employment given to eligible employees of 
LPSO. For purposes of this policy, "Eligible employees" are those employees who are regularly 
employed to work more than 30 hours per week for the LPSO and who have completed their introductory 
period. 

Each 8 hour per day employee is granted eighty (80) hours of personal leave and each 12 hour per day 
employee is granted one hundred twenty (120) hours of personal leave each fiscal year. 

Effective July 1, 2013, policy was changed to state that unused personal leave may not be carried over 
and accumulated in subsequent fiscal years. Any unused personal leave is forfeited at the end of each 
fiscal year and employees will not be compensated for unused personal leave upon separation of 
employment. 

The Sheriffs recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follow: 

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar 
characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the employees if both of the 
following conditions are met: 

1. The employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered. 

2. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time 
off or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement. 

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick leave should be accrued using one of the 
following termination approaches: 

1. An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the benefits 
will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or other 
contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals. 

2. Alternatively, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability based on the 
sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently are eligible to 
receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in 
the future to receive such payments. 

The entire compensated absence liability, which includes both accrued vacation and personal (sick) leave, 
is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental fund financial statements, the 
current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be paid using 
expendable available financial resources. These amounts are recorded in the account "compensated 
absences payable" in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated leave are paid. The 
noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported. 

H. Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net position. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
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Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. As 
detailed in Footnote 13 — Long-Term Debt, the Livingston Parish Sheriff on July 18, 2014 issued 
$2,800,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, to construct a facility that will provide housing for inmates 
participating in the Louisiana Workforce, L.L.C. work release program. The bonds were issued at an 
annual interest rate of 4%, and are due in semi-annual interest and annual principal installments, with the 
bonds maturing on April 1, 2024. 

Additionally, as detailed m Footnote 13 — Long-Term Debt, the Livingston Parish Sheriff on September 6, 
2016 was authorized to issue bonds in the amount up to $10,000,000. The bonds were set up to be drawn 
down as needed and with no early repayment penalty. The Sheriff issued $5,000,000 in Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016-A and drew down $50,000 of die approved $5,000,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 2016-B, to 
fund significant additional expenditures resulting from the August 2016 Flood. The bonds were issued at 
an annual interest rate of 4% and are due in semi-annual interest and annual principal installments, with 
the bonds maturing on September 1, 2026. However, it should be noted that the $50,000 Series 2016-B 
Revenue Bond has been repaid as of June 30, 2017 with no outstanding principal or interest payments 
due. 

The Sheriff has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities, and with the implementation of GASB 65, the recognition of bond-related costs, including the 
costs related to issuance and refunding of debt, are revised. This standard was intended to compliment 
GASB Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position. 

GASB Statement 23, as amended, establishes accounting and financial reporting for current refundings 
and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt. Refundings involve the issuance of new debt 
whose proceeds are used to repay previously issued ("old") debt. The new debt proceeds may be used to 
repay the old debt immediately (a current refunding); or the new debt proceeds may be placed with an 
escrow agent and invested until they are used to pay principal and interest on the old debt at a future time 
(an advance refunding). As described in paragraphs 3 and 4 of GASB Statement No. 7, Advance 
Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt, an advance refunding may result in the in-substance 
defeasance of the old debt provided that certain criteria are met. 

For current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt reported by governmental 
activities, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt 
should be reported as a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources and recognized as 
a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old 
debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The Series 2014 Revenue bonds issued by the 
Sheriff on July 18, 2014, represent new debt for constructing a facility to house inmates participating in a 
work release program. The Series 2016-A and B Revenue bonds issued by the Sheriff on September 6, 
2016, represent new debt to fund significant additional expenditures relating to the August 2016 Flood. 

Paragraph 187 of GASB Statement 62 establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for debt 
issuance costs. Paragraph 12 of Statement 7 indicates that debt issuance costs include all costs incurred to 
issue the bonds, including but not limited to insurance costs (net of rebates from the old debt, if any), 
financing costs (such as rating agency fees), and other related costs (such as printing, legal, 
administrative, and trustee expenses). Debt issuance costs, except any portion related to prepaid 
insurance costs, should be recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Prepaid insurance costs should 
be reported as an asset and recognized as an expense in a systematic and rational manner over the 
duration of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well 
as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other 

34 



Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

1. Net Position 

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State 
and Local Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate components. GASB 
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, revised the terminology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and 
by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 63 requires the 
following components of net position: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets Component of Net Position - The net investment in capital 
assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included in this component of net 
position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at 
the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources 
attributable to the unspent amount should not be included in the calculation of net investment in 
capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources should be included 
in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

• Restricted Component of Net Position - The restricted component of net position consists of 
restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets 
reported. 

• Unrestricted Component of Net Position - The unrestricted component of net position is the net 
amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted 
component of net position. 

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The Sheriff adopted 
GASB 54 for the year ended December 31, 2011. This Statement provides more clearly defined fund 
balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance 
more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints 
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used. 

• Non-spendable. These are amounts that cannot be spent either, because they are in a non-spendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted. These are amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes, because of constitutional 
provisions, enabling legislation or constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

• Committed. These are amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 
decision of the Sheriff, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Sheriff. 
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• Assigned. These are amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, 
but are intended to be used for specific purposes based on the discretion of the Sheriff. 

• Unassigned. These are all other spendable amounts. This also includes expenditure amounts incurred 
for specific purposes which exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes. 

J. Comparative Data/Reclassifications 

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the 
current year's presentation. All prior period adjustments recorded in the current period have been 
reflected in prior period data presented wherever possible. 

K. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the Sheriff, which are either 
unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

L. Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable Revenues 

Deferred Inflows of Resources in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet include unavailable revenues. 
Unavailable revenue consists of grants receivable. The Sheriff considers revenues available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. 

M. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

N. Reconciliations of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net assets is presented in Statement D of the basic financial statements. Explanation of 
certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund 
balances and the government-wide statement of activities is presented in Statement F of the basic 
financial statements. 

O. Pension Plans 

The Livingston Parish Sheriff is a participating employer in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan as described in Note 11. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of each of the plans, and additions to/deductions 
from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair value 
within the plan. 
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2. Cash and Equivalents 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling, as follows: 

2018 
Governmental Fimds 

Cash on Hand $ 2,400 
Interest Bearing Demand Deposits 8,515,763 

Subtotal Deposits in Governmental Fimd 8,518,163 

Fiduciary Funds 
Demand Deposits 1,962,274 

Subtotal Deposits in Fiduciary Fimds 1,962,274 

Total Deposits $ 10,480,437 

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. 

These demand deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or 
the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities 
owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit 
insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in 
the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to 
both parties. 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff has $11,063,454 in deposits (collected bank balances), entirely consisting of 
demand deposits. The demand deposits are secured from risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance 
and $10,813,454 of pledged securities. The $10,813,454 of deposits is exposed to custodial credit risk 
because while the amount is secured by pledged securities, such securities are held by the custodial bank 
in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of 
GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial 
bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the Sheriff that the 
fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
govemment's deposits may not be retumed to it. The Sheriff does not have a formal policy for custodial 
risk. However, under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 

3. Investments 

In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the Investment Advisory Board, which govems the Livingston 
Parish Retired Employees Insurance Fund (LRLIF), began implementation of a relationship with a 
professional investment manager. The LRLIF is included in the Retired Employees Benefits Trust Fund 
as an investment asset. The Sheriff reports the Retired Employees Benefits Trust Fund as a fiduciary 
fund. 

The Advisory Board began moving investments from the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) in 
June of 2011 and completed the transfer in July of 2011. The Advisory Board adopted an investment 
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policy which outlines asset allocation strategy, investment structure, monitoring and evaluation criteria, as 
well as performance measurement milestones. The Investment Advisory Board selected an initial asset 
allocation of thirty-five percent equities and sixty-five percent fixed income with an expected long-term 
return of six percent. As of June 30, 2018, assets transferred to the investment manager totaled 
$8,399,481. 

Composite 
Investments held in (LREIF) Ratings Percentage 

Mutual Funds Varies 100% 

4. Receivables 

The Governmental Fimd receivables at Jiuie 30, 2018 consist of the following: 

General 
Government Receivables Eund 

Due from Fiduciary Funds 
Due from Tax Collector Fluid $ 185,135 
Due from Other Fiuid Accoiuits 187,958 

Due from Other Governments 
Due from Livingston Parish Coiuicil 95,303 
Due from Livingston Parish School Board 840,464 
Due from Livingston Parish Commimications District 384,886 
Due from the State of Louisiana 513,909 
Grants 1,673,319 
Other 61,524 

Due from Private Entities for Security Services 5,597 
Due from Private Trade Entities 48.952 

Total Government Receivables $ 3.997.047 
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5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 for governmental 
activities is as follows: 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets: 
Beginning 

Balance Increases Decrease 
Ending 
Balance 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 

Land $ 381,958 $ - $ - $ 381,958 
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 381,958 - - 381,958 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings and Tower 5,644,088 157,900 - 5,801,988 
Equipment and Furniture 5,054,962 83,587 (975,444) 4,163,105 

Vehicles 6,565,966 731,891 (337,484) 6,960,373 
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 17,265,016 973,378 (1,312,928) 16,925,466 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings and Tower (374,987) (145,020) - (520,007) 
Equipment and Furniture (4,146,688) (234,049) 771,753 (3,608,984) 
Vehicles (3,432,518) (1,010,083) 323,861 (4,118,740) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (7,954,193) (1,389,152) 1,095,614 (8,247,731) 
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 9,310,823 (415,774) (217,314) 8,677,735 

Total Governmental Activities Capital 
Assets, Net $ 9,692,781 $ (415,774) $ (217,314) $ 9,059,693 

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Public Safety $ 1,389,152 

6. Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables 

General 

Governmental Funds Payable Fund 

Accounts $ 429,177 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 

Accrued Salaries 76,212 
Accrued Health Claims 319,278 

Other Accrued Liabilities 
Due to Livingston Parish Library 648,273 

Total Government Funds Payable $ 1,472,940 

The Livingston Parish Sheriff on July 9, 2014 signed an agreement to pay commission to the Livingston 
Parish Library in the amount of $786,272. The payment schedule includes $90,000 paid from escrow 
funds in July 2014 and annual payments of $12,000 with no interest thereafter. 

As of June 30, 2018, the Livingston Parish Sheriff owes the Livingston Parish Library $648,273 which is 
recorded as a liability of the general fund. 

39 



Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Future requirements are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2019 ; B 12,000 $ ; - $ 12,000 

2020 12,000 - 12,000 

2021 12,000 - 12,000 

2022 12,000 - 12,000 

2023 12,000 - 12,000 

2024 to 2028 60,000 - 60,000 

2029 to 2031 528,273 - 528,273 
< B 648,273 $ ; - $ 648,273 

7. State Revenue Sharing 

The revenue sharing fimds provided by Act 525 were distributed as follows for the year ended 
Jiuie 30, 2018: 

Livingston Parish School Board $ 982,274 
Livingston Parish Coimcil 392,642 
Livingston Parish Library 173,695 
Livingston Parish Fire Protection Districts 295,933 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 689,798 
Livingston Parish Assessor 127,774 
Livingston Parish Juvenile Justice Commission 21,961 
Livingston Parish Gravity Drainage District 25,437 
Pension Funds 26.351 

Total Revenue Sharing Funds Distributed $ 2,735,865 

8. Taxes Paid Under Protest 

There were no unsettled balances due to taxing bodies and others in the agency funds at June 30, 2018. 

9. Group Health Self Insurance 

Beginning in March of 2005, the Sheriff started self-insuring the group health coverage for employees. 
Each month the Sheriff funds an account with an amount equal to what would be required for premiums if 
the previous policy had continued. From this account, the health claims of employees are paid, as well as 
a premium for stop-loss insurance which caps the claims per employee at $75,000 per policy year. As of 
June 30, 2018, the account used to pay claims had a book balance of $24,761, which represents a 
commitment of the General Fund. The Sheriff has accrued a liability for claims incurred but not reported 
as of June 30, 2018 in the amount of $319,278 based on a search of actual claims subsequent to the 
balance sheet date. 

The officers of the Louisiana Sheriff's Association may adopt a self-insurance plan to provide group 
coverage for health, medical and surgical expenses of participating sheriffs and deputy sheriffs. Any self-
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insurance plan adopted by the Louisiana Sheriff's Association shall not be subject to any of the provisions 
of Subpart P or Part I of Chapter 2 of Title 22 of die Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950. 

10. Retirement Systems 

Substantially all employees of the Livingston Parish Sheriffs Office are members of the Louisiana 
Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by a separate board of trustees. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Louisiana Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund, 1225 Nicholson Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802, or 
by calling (225)219-0500. 

The Sheriffs office implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the measurement date - an amendment of GASB 68. The standards 
require the sheriffs office to record its proportional share of the Pension's plan Net Pension Liability and 
report the following disclosures: 

The remaining employees are members of the Federal Social Security System. 

A. Federal Social Security System 

All employees who are not eligible to participate in the Louisiana Sheriff's Pension and Relief Fund are 
members of the Federal Social Security System. The Sheriff contributes 6.2 percent for social security 
and 1.45 percent for Medicare, and its employees contribute 6.2 percent for social security and 1.45 
percent for Medicare of each employee's taxable compensation. The Sheriff's contributions during the 
year ended June 30, 2018 were $43,902 for social security and $209,638 for Medicare. 

B. Louisiana Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund (System) 

Plan Description'. The Louisiana Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund is the administrator of a cost-sharing, 
multiple employer defined benefit plan, the plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to 
employees of sheriffs offices throughout the state of Louisiana, employees of the Louisiana Sheriffs 
Association and the sheriffs Pension and relief Fund's office as provided for in LRS 11:271. 

Members who joined the system on or before December 31, 2011, are eligible for regular retirement 
benefits upon attaining 30 years of creditable service at any age, or 12 years or creditable service and age 
55 years is entitled to retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.33 percent of his final 
average compensation for each year of creditable service, not to exceed (after reduction for optional 
payment form) 100% of average final compensation. Active, contributing members with at least 10 years 
of creditable service may retire at age 60. The accrued normal retirement benefit is reduced actuarially 
for each month or fraction thereof that retirement begins prior to the member's earliest normal retirement 
date assuming continuous service. Members who joined the system on or after January 1, 2012, who 
retire at or after age 62 with at least 12 years of creditable service, at or after age 60 with at least 20 years 
of creditable service, or at 55 with 30 years of creditable service are entitled to retirement benefit payable 
monthly for life, equal to 3.00 percent. For members with 30 or more years of service; the accrual rate is 
3.33 percent. The retirement allowance is equal to the benefit accrual times the member's final average 
compensation each year of creditable service. In any case, the retirement benefit cannot exceed 100 
percent of their final average salary. Members with 20 or more years of services may retire with a 
reduced retirement at age 55. For members eligible on or before June 30, 2006, final average 
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compensation is based on the average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months (60 
highest consecutive months for member employed between July 1, 2006 and July 1, 2013) or joined 
months if service was interrupted. The earnings to be considered for each 12-month period within the 36-
month (or 60 month) period shall not exceed 125% of the preceding 12 months. For members joining 
after July 1, 2013, final compensation is based on the average monthly earning during the highest 60 
consecutive months and the earnings to be considered for each 12-month period within the 60 months 
shall not exceed 115% of the preceding 12-month period. 

A member is eligible to receive disability benefits if the member has at least 10 years of creditable service 
when a non-service related disability is incurred; there are no service requirements for a service related 
disability. Disability benefits shall be the lesser of a sum equal to the greatest of 45% or final average 
compensation or the members' accrued retirement benefit at the time of termination of employment due to 
disability, or the retirement benefit which would be payable assuming continued service to the earliest 
normal retirement age. Members who become partially disabled receive 75% of the amount payable for 
total disability. 

Survivor benefits for death, solely as a result of injuries received in the line of duty, are based on the 
following. For a spouse alone, a sum equal to 50% of the member's final average compensation with a 
minimum of $150 per month. If a spouse is entitled to benefits and has a child or children under 18 years 
of age (or over said age if physically or mentally incapacitated and dependent upon the member at the 
time of his death), an additional sum of 15% of the member's final average compensation is paid to each 
child with total benefits paid to spouse and children not to exceed 100%. If a member dies with no 
surviving spouse, surviving children under age eighteen will receive monthly benefits of 15% of the 
member's final average compensation up to a maximum of 60% of final average compensation if there are 
more than four children. If a member is eligible for normal retirement at the time of death, the surviving 
spouse receives an automatic option 2 benefit. The additional benefit payable to children shall be the 
same as those available for members who die in the line of duty. In lieu of receiving option 2 benefit, the 
surviving spouse may receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions. All benefits payable 
to surviving children shall be extended through age twenty three, if the child is a full time student in good 
standing enrolled at a board approved or accredited school, college, or university. 

The fund does provide for deferred benefits for vested members who terminate before being eligible for 
retirement. Benefits become payable once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement. 

In lieu of receiving a service retirement allowance, any member of the Fund who has more than sufficient 
service for a regular service retirement may elect to receive a "Back-DROP" benefit. The Back-DROP 
benefit is based upon the Back-DROP period selected and the final average compensation prior to the 
period selected. The Back-DROP period is the lesser of three years or the service accrued between the 
time a member first becomes eligible for retirement and his actual date of retirement. For those 
individuals with thirty or more years, the Back-DROP period is the lesser of four years or service accrued 
between the time a member first becomes eligible for retirement and his actual date of retirement. At 
retirement the member's maximum monthly retirement benefit is based upon his service, final average 
compensation and plan provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service immediately prior to the 
commencement of the Back-DROP period. In addition to the monthly benefit at retirement, the member 
receives a lump-sum payment equal to the maximum monthly benefit as calculated above multiplied by 
the number of months in the Back-DROP period. In addition, the member's Back-DROP account will be 
credited with employee contributions received by the retirement fund during the Back-Drop period. 
Participants have the option to opt out of this program and take a distribution, if eligible, or to rollover the 
assets to another qualified plan. 

Cost of living provision of the Fund allows the board of trustees to provide an annual cost of living 
increase of 2.5% of the eligible retiree's original benefit if certain funding criteria are met. Members are 
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eligible to receive a cost of living adjustment once they have attained the age of sixty and have been 
retired at least one year. Funding criteria for granting cost of living adjustments is dependent on the 
funded ratio. 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each 
year. For the year ending June 30, 2017, the actual employer contribution rate was 13.25% with no 
additional amount allocated from the funding Deposit Account. In accordance with state statue, the Fund 
receives ad valorem taxes, insurance premium taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional 
sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support for non-employer 
contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. Non-employer contributions of 
$837,384 are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 10.25% of their annual covered salary and the 
Livingston Parish Sheriff is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate for 
the year ended June 30, 2018 was 12.75% of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also 
include one-half of one percent of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish and 
funds as required and available from insurance premium taxes. The contribution requirements of plan 
members and the Livingston Parish Sheriff are established and may be amended by state statute. As 
provided by R.S. 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject 
to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Livingston Parish 
Sheriffs conhibutions to the System for the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, were $1,734,083 and 
$1,958,167 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2018, the Sheriff reported a liability of $9,134,864 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of the System. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The Sheriffs proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the sheriffs 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
employers actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017 the Sheriffs proportion was 2.109535%, which was 
an increase of 0.22% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 the sheriff recognized pension expense of $129,916 representing its 
proportional share of the System's net expense, including amortization of deferred amounts. 
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At June 30, 2018, die Sheriff reported deferred outflows of resoi^ces and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following soirees: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

of Resources of Resoi^ces 
Differences between ejected and actual e^eriences $ - $ (1,590,168) 

Changes of assumptions 1,607,327 (131,113) 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan invesfrnents 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,427,095 (163,196) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,221, 

Total $ 4,756,310 $ (1,884,477) 

The sheriff reported a total of $1,721,888 as deferred outflows of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2017 which will be recognized as a 
reduction in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2018 $ (180,943) 
2019 795,799 
2020 460,583 
2021 (437,014) 
2022 317,904 
2023 193,184 

$ 1,149,513 
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Actuarial Assumptions - A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the 
total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assunptions: 

Ejqjected Remaining Service lives 7 years 
Investment Rate of Retum 7.5%, net of investment ejqjense 

Discount Rate 7.4% 

Projected Salary Increases 5.5% (2.775% inflation, 2.725% merit) 
Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy wifli Blue Collar Adjustment Sex 

Distinct Table for active members, healthy annuitants and 
beneficiaries 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table for disabled annuitants 

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of fijture retirement benefits is based on benefits 

currentfy being paid by the Fund and includes prevbiisfy granted 
cost of living increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet auttiorized by the 
Board of Trustees as they were deemed not to be substantively 
automatic. 

The mortality rate assumptions were set after reviewing an experience study performed over the period 
July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2014. The data was then assigned credibility weighting and combined 
with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to 
a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the Fund's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on 
this mortahty were compared to those produced by using a setback of standard tables. The result of the 
procedure indicated that these tables would produce liability values approximating the appropriate 
generational mortality tables used. 

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected retums, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the expected fiitiwe real rates 
of retum by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

Estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class based on the Fund's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2017 were as follows: 

Ejqjected Rate of Retum 

Asset Class 

Equity Securities 

Bonds 
Alternative Investments 

Total 

Inflation 

Ejected Arithmetic Nominal Retum 

Target ADocation 

60% 

25% 
15% 

100.00% 

Real Retum 

Ariflimetic Basis 

7.40% 

2.60% 

4.20% 

Long- Term Ejqsected 

Real Rate of Retum 

4.40% 

0.70% 
0.60% 

5.70% 

2.60% 

8.30% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.4%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the Fund's 
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actuary. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's proportionate Share of the net pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the Sheriffs proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the Sheriffs proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-
point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

Current 

Discount 

1 % Decrease Rate 1 % Increase 

Louisiana Sheriff Pension & Relief Fund -Rates 6.40% 7.40% 8.40% 

Livingston Parish Sheriffs Share of Net Pension LiabiEty $ 18,820,228 $ 9,134,864 $ 985,949 

11. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan Description and Administration - The Livingston Parish Sheriffs Office administers the Livingston 
Parish Sheriffs Office Retiree Benefits Plan (the Plan) - a single-employer defined benefit plan that is 
used to provide post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) for all permanent full-time 
employees of the Sheriff. The Plan was established in 2002. In 2009, The Sheriff created a Trust to 
finance future payments of retired employee's premium costs. The Trust is included as a fiduciary fund in 
the Sheriffs financial statements. Separate stand-alone statements are not issued for the plan. 

Management of the Plan - Management of the plan is vested in the Board, which consists of management 
and the Board of Directors, who may vary from time to time. 

Plan Membership - At June 30, 2018, the Plan's membership consisted of the following: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries ciurently receiving 

benefit pajmients 411 

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving 
benefit pajmients 

Active plan members 600 

1.011 

Benefits Provided - Medical and life insurance benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement. 
The Livingston Parish Sheriff pays one hundred percent of the medical coverage for the retiree only (not 
dependents). Retirees are eligible for benefits once they meet the retirement eligibility requirements of 
the Louisiana Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund. Eligibility requirements of the Louisiana Sheriffs 
Pension and Relief Fund are age fifty-five with at least twelve years of service or any age with at least 
thirty years of service, but employees must have at least 15 years of service at retirement for employer 
paid medical coverage. 
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Life insurance coverage is continued to retirees in the same amount as while active but there is a 
reduction schedule whereby the amount of life insurance is reduced to the following percentages: 65% at 
age 65, 45% at age 70, 30% at age 75, 20 % at age 80, 15% at age 85 and 10% at age 90. The employer 
pays 100% of the cost of life insurance after retirement for retirees (not dependents), but it is based on the 
blended active/retired rate and there is thus an implied subsidy. 

Contributions - The Sheriff has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements of the 
Sheriff and the plan members. Plan members are not required to contribute to their post-employment 
benefits costs. 

Investments 

Investment Policy - The Trust Board's management meets quarterly to review the investments and make 
decisions about future investments. The following was the asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2018: 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 

Asset Class Rate of Return 
Domestic Equity 6.0% 
Corporate Bonds 5.0% 
Agency Bonds 1.5% 
Cash 1.0% 

Concentrations - The Trust has over 5% invested in the following funds: Growth Fund of America Class 
F2, 7.69%; Oakmark Fund Investor Class, 7.18%; and Washington Mutual Investors Class, 7.14%. 

Rate of Return - For the year ended June 30, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of retum on 
investments, net of investment expense, was 5.95%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses 
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Net OPEB Liability 

The components of the net OPFB liability of the Sheriff at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 

Total OP FB Uability $ 13,992,325 
Plan fiduciary net position 8,399,481 
Sheriffs net OPFB Uability $ 5,592,844 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPFB Uability 60.03% 

The Sheriff's net OPFB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPFB liability used to 
calculate the net OPFB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPFB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
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Discount rate 6.0%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 5.5% annually 

Morality rates were based on the 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based 
on a fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rates and 50% of the unloaded female mortality 
rates. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2017. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates 
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long-Teim 
Expected Real 

Asset Class Rate of Return 
Domestic Equity 6.0% 
Corporate Bonds 5.0% 
Agency Bonds 1.5% 
Cash 1.0% 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.0%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the Sheriff's contributions will be made at 
rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumption, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on OPEB plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

Increase (Decreases) 
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)-(b) 

Balances at 06/30/2017 $ 15,331,083 $ 7,937,849 : S 7,393,234 

Service Cost 196,224 _ 196,224 

Interest Cost at 6.00% 904,584 - 904,584 
Difference between Ej^ected & Actual Experience (244,207) - (244,207) 

Employer ConUibutions - Trust - - -
Net Investinent Income - 471,632 (471,632) 

Changes in Assumptions (1,686,002) - (1,686,002) 

Benefit Payments 
a. From Trust - - -

b. Direct (509,357) - (509,357) 
AdminisUative Ej^ense 

a. From Trust - (10,000) 10,000 
b. Direct - - -

Net changes (1,338,758) 461,632 (1,800,390) 

Balances at 06/30/2018 $ 13,992,325 I B 8,399,481 J B 5,592,844 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following represents the net 
OPEB liability of the Sheriff, as well as what the Sheriffs net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.0%) or 1-percentage point higher 
(7.0%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease 
(5.0%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (6.0%) 

Net OPEB Liability $ 7,749,691 $ 5,592,844 $ 

1.0% Increase 
(7.0%) 

3.854.388 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following 
represents the net OPEB liability of the Sheriff, as well as what the Sheriffs net OPEB liability would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower (4.5%) or 1-
percentage point higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

Net OPEB Liability $ 

1.0% Decrease 
(4.5%) 

3,792,967 $ 

Current Trend 
(5.5%) 

5,592,844 $ 

1.0% Increase 
(6.5%) 

7.817.255 
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For die year ended June 30, 2018, the Sheriff recognized OPEB expense of $528,471. At June 30, 2018, 
the Sheriff reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between e?q)ected and actual experience 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
OPEB plan investments 
Assiunption changes 

3,471 $ 

3,471 $ 

(230,640) 
(1,592,335) 
(1,822,975) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in the OPEB expense as follows: 

Fiscal Years Ending Jime 30 
2019 

2020 
2021 

2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

Net Amoimt to 
be Recognized 
$ (106,366) 
$ (106,366) 
$ (106,366) 
$ (106,366) 
$ (107,234) 
$ (1,286,806) 

12. Deferred Compensation Plan 

All of the employees of the Livingston Parish Sheriff are eligible to participate in the State of Louisiana 
deferred compensation plan. Employees hired after July 1, 2012 do not receive employer match deferred 
compensation plan. Employees hired before July 1, 2012 continue to receive an employer match 
according to the following schedule: 

Years of Service Match 
0-4 2.00% 
5-9 4.00% 

10-14 7.00% 
15-19 10.00% 
20-24 12.00% 
25+ 14.31% 

Employees may contribute up to twenty-five percent of their salary (not to exceed $17,500 a year) to the 
plan on a pre-tax basis. Participants in the plan have two different opportunities to catch up and 
contribute more during the final years of their career. "Standard Catch-Up" allows participants in the 
three calendar years prior to normal retirement age to contribute more to the plan (up to double the annual 
contribution limit of $35,000 in 2018). The additional amount that you may be able to contribute under 
the Standard Catch-Up option will depend upon the amounts that you were eligible to contribute in 
previous years but did not. 
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Also, participants turning age 50 or older in 2014 may contribute an additional $5,500. The Standard 
Catch-Up provision and the Age 50+ Catch Up provision cannot be used in the same year. 

The contributions are withheld from the employees' paycheck and the Sheriff matches employees' 
contributions according to plan specifications. The contributions are fully vested immediately and are 
remitted to a third-party administrator each payday, where they are deposited in an account in the 
employee's name. The Livingston Parish Sherriff does not assume any liability for the funds and does 
not have any control over the funds once they are remitted to the third-party administrator. During the 
year ended June 30, 2018, die Sheriff contributed $431,863 to the plan. 

13. Long Term Debt 

On July 18, 2014, the Livingston Parish Sheriff issued $2,800,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, to 
construct a facility that will provide housing for inmates participating in the Louisiana Workforce, L.L.C. 
work release program. The bonds were issued at annual interest rate of 4.0% with interest installments 
due semi-annually and principal payments due annually, with the bonds maturing on April 1, 2024. 

Beginning Ending Current Long-Term 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 $ 1,960,000 $ - $ (280,000) $ 1,680,000 $ 280,000 $ 1,400,000 

The annual requirements to amortize the Series 2014 Revenue Bonds, including interest payments of 
$235,200, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2019 ; $ 280,000 3 > 67,200 3 i 347,200 

2020 280,000 56,000 336,000 

2021 280,000 44,800 324,800 

2022 280,000 33,600 313,600 

2023 280,000 22,400 302,400 

2024 280,000 11,200 291,200 
1 $ 1,680,000 3 > 235,200 3 i 1,915,200 

Due to the August 2016 Flood, which caused significant additional expenditures, the Sheriff requested 
and was authorized to issue bonds in an amount up to $10,000,000. The bonds were set up to be drawn 
down as needed and with no early repayment penalty. On September 6, 2016, the Livingston Parish 
Sheriff issued $5,000,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 2016-A to fund additional expenditures due to the 
August 2016 Flood. The bonds were issued at an annual interest rate of 4.0% with interest installments 
due semi-annually and principal payments due annually, with the bonds maturing September 1, 2026. 

Beginning Ending Current Long-Term 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016-A 3 ; 5,000,000 $ $ (435,000) $ 4,565,000 J S 435,000 $ 4,130,000 

Total Series 2016 Bonds 3 ; 5,000,000 $ $ (435,000) $ 4,565,000 J S 435,000 $ 4,130,000 
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The annual requirements to amortize the Series 2016-A Revenue Bonds, including interest payments of 
$858,220, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2019 ; $ 435,000 3 > 173,900 ; B 608,900 
2020 478,000 155,640 633,640 
2021 478,000 136,520 614,520 
2022 478,000 117,400 595,400 
2023 522,000 97,400 619,400 
2024 2,174,000 177,360 2,351,360 

1 $ 4,565,000 3 > 858,220 ; B 5,423,220 

Total interest incurred and recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities was $261,100 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 

14. Tax Collector Account 

Cash on Hand at Fiscal Year End 

The balance in the Tax Collector Account at Jiuie 30, 2018, consisted of the following: 

Tax Collector Operating Accoimt 

Tax Collector Protested Taxes Accoimt 

Cash Balance at Fiscal Year End 

706,071 

31 

706.102 

The total of $31 within the Tax Collector Protested Taxes account at June 30, 2018, consisted of tax 
payments and accumulated interest income, for tax payments placed in escrow pending legal settlement. 
The remaining $706,071 was for disbursements made after fiscal year end for June collections. 

Amounts in escrow at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following: 

Taxpayer 

Accumulated 
Interest 
Income 

Total Tax 
Payments 
Escrowed 

Library Maintenance 

Total Taxes and Interest 

31 $ 

31 $ 

Total Taxes 
and Interest 

31 

31 

Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S. 24:513B), as amended by Act 711 of the Louisiana Legislative Session, 
require that the audit report for parish sheriffs include footnote disclosures for the amount of taxes 
collected and disbursed per taxing entity. For the Livingston Parish Sheriff, this requires disclosure of 
current and prior year ad valorem tax collections and distributions, and disclosure of occupational license 
fees collected and disbursed. For ad valorem taxes, amounts collected vary to disbursements by tax 
refunds, fees, commissions, Louisiana Tax Commission (LTC) change orders, and other corrections. The 
amount of collections and disbursements are presented in the following sections. 
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The schedule of taxes assessed and settled is as follows for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018: 

Ac^usted Tax to be Amount 

Taxing District Tax Roll Ac^udcations Refunds Uncdlected Collected Settled 

Livingston Parish Assessor : £ 4,316,376 £ (16,440) £ 16,400 £ 5,272 £ 4,311,144 £ 4,311,144 
Livingston Gravity Drainage District No. 1 713,781 (1,843) 3,755 1,095 710,774 710,774 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 1 174,960 (1,044) 342 455 175,207 175,207 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 2 311,059 (3,047) 1,139 397 312,570 312,570 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 4 2,296,761 (6,592) 7,545 2,078 2,293,730 2,293,730 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 5 929,031 (3,158) 4,389 597 927,203 927,203 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 7 75,779 (1,949) 179 61 77,488 77,488 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 8 186,945 (699) 835 274 186,535 186,535 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 9 189,649 (945) 430 105 190,059 190,059 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 10 177,507 (430) 145 268 177,524 177,524 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 11 17,919 (344) 80 73 18,110 18,110 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 4 (User Fees) 739,765 (7,808) 736 2,176 744,661 744,661 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 7 (User Fees) 38,592 (576) - 128 39,040 39,040 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 9 (User Fees) 68,608 (1,024) 64 128 69,440 69,440 
Livingston Fire Protection District No. 11 (User Fees) 16,352 (576) 32 64 16,832 16,832 
Livingston Parish Libraiy - LBM 506,617 (1,930) 1,925 619 506,003 506,003 
Livingston Parish Libraiy - LIB Tax 3,746,691 (16,890) 13,328 4,057 3,746,196 3,746,196 
Livingston Parish Council - PTX 2,341,769 (6,603) 9,700 3,319 2,335,353 2,335,353 
Livingston Parish Council - Road Equip & Mtce 2,533,085 (9,648) 9,625 3,094 2,530,014 2,530,014 
Livingston Parish Council - Health Unit 1,266,542 (4,824) 4,812 1,547 1,265,007 1,265,007 
Livingston Recreation District No. 2 977,422 (1,709) 1,491 548 977,092 977,092 
Livingston Recreation District No. 3 2,403,368 (6,283) 12,798 3,734 2,393,119 2,393,119 
Livingston Recreation District No. 5 368,110 (1,885) 925 911 368,159 368,159 
Livingston Parish School Board - SOI 2,257,153 (6,253) 10,937 3,281 2,249,188 2,249,188 
Livingston Parish School Board - S04 1,094,908 (3,429) 4,699 1,074 1,092,564 1,092,564 
Livingston Parish School Board - S04-1 1,973,456 (6,356) 8,749 1,999 1,969,064 1,969,064 
Livingston Parish School Board - S22 1,184,426 (2,071) 1,806 664 1,184,027 1,184,027 
Livingston Parish School Board - S33 136,987 (832) 410 122 137,287 137,287 
Livingston Parish School Board - Construction 1,666,770 (6,348) 6,333 2,036 1,664,749 1,664,749 
Livingston Parish School Board - Special Mtce 3,546,317 (13,507) 13,474 4,331 3,542,019 3,542,019 
Livingston Parish School Board - Additional Mtce 3,637,509 (13,855) 13,821 4,443 3,633,100 3,633,100 
Livingston Parish School Board - District No. 5 2,533,085 (9,648) 9,625 3,094 2,530,014 2,530,014 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement 5,628,513 (21,438) 21,386 6,874 5,621,691 5,621,691 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement - Special 5,344,823 (20,357) 20,308 6,528 5,338,344 5,338,344 
Florida Parish Juvenile District 1,393,197 (5,307) 5,293 1,702 1,391,509 1,391,509 
City of Denham Springs 290,051 (441) 1,194 681 288,617 288,617 
Comite River District 103,582 (88) 341 181 103,148 103,148 
Carter Plantation Community Dev District - SMF 83,650 - - - 83,650 83,650 
Livingston Parish Council on Aging 1,013,103 (3,859) 3,784 1,238 1,011,940 1,011,940 
Louisiana Tax Commission - BKN 1,008 - - - 1,008 1,008 
Louisiana Tax Commission - PBS 17,577 - - 1 17,576 17,576 
Louisiana Forestry 21,089 (28) 7 76 21,034 21,034 
Creekstone Juban 11, LLC 1,077,554 - 538,777 - 538,777 538,777 
Total Current Taxes : £ 57,401,446 £ (210,064) £751,619 £ 69,325 £56,790,566 £56,790,566 
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The amount of Current Year taxes collected and disbursed is as follows for the fiscal year Ending Jime 30, 2018: 

Current Taxes Current Taxes 
Taxing District Collected Disbursed 

Livingston Parish Assessor $ 4,311,144 $ 4,311,144 
Livingston Gravity Drainage District No. 1 710,774 710,774 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 1 175,207 175,207 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 2 312,570 312,570 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 4 2,293,730 2,293,730 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 5 927,203 927,203 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 7 77,488 77,488 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 8 186,535 186,535 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 9 190,059 190,059 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 10 177,524 177,524 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 11 18,110 18,110 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 4 (User Fees) 744,661 744,661 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 7 (User Fees) 39,040 39,040 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 9 (User Fees) 69,440 69,440 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 11 (User Fees) 16,832 16,832 
Livingston Parish Library - LBM 506,003 506,003 
Livingston Parish Library - LIB Tax 3,746,196 3,746,196 
Livingston Parish Coimcil - PTX 2,335,353 2,335,353 
Livingston Parish Coimcil - Road Equ^ & Mtce 2,530,014 2,530,014 
Livingston Parish Council - Health Unit 1,265,007 1,265,007 
Livingston Recreation Disttict No. 2 977,092 977,092 
Livingston Recreation Disttict No. 3 2,393,119 2,393,119 
Livingston Recreation Disttict No. 5 368,159 368,159 
Livingston Parish School Board - SOI 2,249,188 2,249,188 
Livingston Parish School Board - S04 1,092,564 1,092,564 
Livingston Parish School Board - S04-1 1,969,064 1,969,064 
Livingston Parish School Board - S22 1,184,027 1,184,027 
Livingston Parish School Board - S33 137,287 137,287 
Livingston Parish School Board - Consttuction 1,664,749 1,664,749 
Livingston Parish School Board - Special Mtce 3,542,019 3,542,019 
Livingston Parish School Board - Additional Mtce 3,633,100 3,633,100 
Livingston Parish School Board - Disttict No. 5 2,530,014 2,530,014 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement 5,621,691 5,621,691 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement - Special 5,338,344 5,338,344 
Florida Parish Juvenile District 1,391,509 1,391,509 
City of Denham Springs 288,617 288,617 
Comite River District 103,148 103,148 
Carter Plantation Community Development District - SMF 83,650 83,650 
Livingston Parish Council on Aging 1,011,940 1,011,940 
Louisiana Tax Commission - BKN 1,008 1,008 
Louisiana Tax Commission - PBS 17,576 17,576 
Louisiana Forestry 21,034 21,034 
Creekstone Juban 11, LLC 538,777 538,777 
Interest Collected on Taxes 136,445 136,445 

Total Current Taxes $ 56,927,011 $ 56,927,011 
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The amount of Prior Year advalorem taxes collected and disbursed is as foUows for the fiscal year ending 
June 30. 2018: 

Prior Year Taxes Prior Year Taxes 
Taxing District Collected Disbursed 

Livingston Parish Assessor $ 25,944 $ 25,944 
Livingston Gravity Drainage Disttict No. 1 6,858 6,858 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 1 1,177 1,177 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 2 4,028 4,028 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 4 7,950 7,950 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 5 10,242 10,242 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 7 54 54 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 8 1,622 1,622 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 9 655 655 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 10 208 208 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 11 56 56 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 4 (User Fees) 6,585 6,585 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 7 (User Fees) 128 128 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 9 (User Fees) 1,088 1,088 
Livingston Fire Protection Disttict No. 11 (User Fees) 64 64 
Livingston Parish Library - LBM 2,218 2,218 
Livingston Parish Library - LIB Tax 30,623 30,623 
Livingston Parish Council 6,509 6,509 
Livingston Parish Council - Health Unit 9,342 9,342 
Livingston Parish Council - Road Equ^ & Maint 15,184 15,184 
Livingston Recreation District No. 2 2,297 2,297 
Livingston Recreation District No. 3 23,770 23,770 
Livingston Recreation District No. 5 346 346 
Livingston Parish School Board - SOI 17,610 17,610 
Livingston Parish School Board - S04 9,116 9,116 
Livingston Parish School Board - S22 3,242 3,242 
Livingston Parish School Board - S24 633 633 
Livingston Parish School Board -S27A 1,409 1,409 
Livingston Parish School Board - S32A 2,589 2,589 
Livingston Parish School Board - S33 612 612 
Livingston Parish School Board - Construction 10,124 10,124 
Livingston Parish School Board - Special Maint 21,541 21,541 
Livingston Parish School Board - Additional Maint 22,095 22,095 
Livingston Parish School Board - District No. 5 15,350 15,350 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement 39,484 39,484 
Livingston Parish Law Enforcement - Special 27,466 27,466 
Florida Parish Juvenile Disttict 8,503 8,503 
City of Denham Springs 1,959 1,959 
Comite River Disttict 233 233 
Livingston Parish Council on Aging 6,053 6,053 
Louisiana Forestry 34 34 
Special Maintenance Fee 2,100 2,100 
Louisiana Tax Commissioner-LTC Bank Tax 64 64 
Filing Fees, Cost and Interest 73,616 73,616 
Total $ 420,781 $ 420,781 
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Occupational License fees collected and disbiffsed are as follows for the fiscal year Ending June 30, 2018: 

Gross Collections $ 1,333,176 
Less Refiuids (2,567) 
Net Collections 1,330,609 

Less Distribution to Livingston Parish Council (at 85%) (1,072,245) 
Less Commission to Livingston Parish Sheriff (at 15%) (189,219) 
Balance Not DisMbuted $ 69,145 

There were no uncollected taxes at June 30, 2018, and all tax collections were disbursed to taxing districts 
at June 30, 2018, or held in escrow at fiscal year-end pending legal determination for distributions. 

15. Risk Management 

The Sheriff is exposed to various risks of loss related to law enforcement liabilities: torts, theft, damage or 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and injuries to employees. To handle such risks of loss, the 
Sheriff maintains commercial insurance policies covering automobile liability, general liability, 
commercial crime, law enforcement, public official's liability, worker's compensation and employer's 
liability. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage for the current year or in the 
three prior years. 

16. Contingent Liabilities 

At June 30, 2018, the Livingston Parish Sheriff is involved in several lawsuits and claims, which are 
either adequately covered by liability insurance or in the opinion of legal counsel, will not result in any 
liability to the Sheriff. 

17. Expenditures of the Sheriffs Office Paid by the Parish Council 

The Sheriffs administration offices are located in the parish courthouse building. The cost of 
maintaining and operating the courthouse, as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 33:4715, is paid by 
the Livingston Parish Council. These costs are not included in the accompanying financial statements. 

18. On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries 

A portion of the salaries of the Sheriffs deputies are paid through a supplement from the State of 
Louisiana. These payments provide the deputies of the Sheriff with an additional $500 per month, which 
is added to their base salary. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with GASB 24, the 
Sheriff recorded $809,396, of on behalf payments as revenue and as an expenditure in the General Fund. 
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19. Prior Period Adjustment 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the following statement was implemented: GASB 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Statement No. 75 addressed 
accounting and financial reporting for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for health care and life 
insurance that are provided to employees of state and local governmental employers. In addition. 
Statement No. 75 supersedes GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended. Most significantly, the Sheriff 
is required to recognize the OPEB Liability presented in Note 11. 

Governmental 
Activities 

Net Position, Jiuie 30, 2017 as previously reported $ 6,415,516 
Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2017 (8,460,683) 

Total Net Position, Jiuie 30, 2017, Restated $^^^2j045J6^ 

20. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through December 28, 2018, the date the 
financial statements were available for issuance. No other events were noted that require recording or 
disclosure in the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
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Schedule 1 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual 
General Fund 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Ad valorem 

Sales and Use 
Intergovernmental 

Grants 

Support of Prisoners 
State Revenue Sharing 
Service Contract Revenue 

Fines, Forfeitures and Other Fees 

Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

On Behalf Payments - State Supplemental Pay 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Public Safety 

Personal Services and Related Benefits 

Salaries 

Enployee Benefits 
Travel & Training 
Operating Services 
Professional Services 

Materials and Supplies 
General 
Prisoners 
Vehicles 

Total Public Safety 

Capital Outlays 
Debt Service 

Princpal 

Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 
Proceeds from Debt 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning 
Fund Balances, Ending 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 

8,646,426 

9.426.821 

Variance 
Amounts Favorable 

Original Final GAAP Basis (Unfavorable) 

10,000,000 3 ; 11,200,000 $ ; 11,347,931 $ 147,931 

10,000,000 9,200,000 9,470,131 270,131 

200,000 575,000 686,314 111,314 

2,900,000 2,900,000 3,226,563 326,563 
645,000 685,000 689,798 4,798 

1,050,000 1,100,000 1,275,066 175,066 

3,000,000 3,000,000 3,148,032 148,032 

55,000 90,000 97,510 7,510 
1,500,000 1,000,000 1,006,117 6,117 

750,000 800,000 809,396 9,396 

30,100,000 30,550,000 31,756,858 1,206,858 

16,000,000 15,000,000 14,217,413 782,587 

7,750,000 7,750,000 7,505,412 244,588 
240,000 250,000 262,872 (12,872) 

5,510,000 5,750,000 3,708,776 2,041,224 

750,000 775,000 854,887 (79,887) 

- - 792,280 (792,280) 

- - 1,661,847 (1,661,847) 
- - 51,274 (51,274) 

30,250,000 29,525,000 29,054,761 470,239 

2,000,000 1,750,000 973,378 776,622 

991,000 991,000 715,000 276,000 
- - 269,700 (269,700) 

33,241,000 32,266,000 31,012,839 1,253,161 

(3,141,000) (1,716,000) 744,019 2,460,019 

-
15,000 36,376 21,376 

- 15,000 36,376 21,376 

(3,141,000) $ (1,701,000) 780,395 a > 2,481,395 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Notes to Budget Comparison Schedules 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budgetary procedures applicable to the Livingston Parish Sheriff are defined in state law, Louisiana 
Revised Statues 39:1301-1315. The Sheriff uses the following budget practices: 

Proposed budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting and published in the official 
journal at least ten days prior to the public hearing. Public hearings are held at the Livingston Parish 
Sheriff's office during the month of June for comments from taxpayers. The budgets are then legally 
adopted by the Sheriff and amended during the year, as necessary. Budgets are established and controlled 
by the Sheriff at the object level of expenditures. Appropriations lapse at year-end and must be re-
appropriated for the following year to be expended. 

Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements include the original adopted budget 
amounts and one budget amendment. The Sheriff must adopt a budget each year for the general fund and 
each special revenue fund, if applicable. The Sheriff must prepare and submit the proposed budget for 
consideration not later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. At the same time, if 
total proposed expenditures are $500,000 or more, a notice of public hearing on the proposed budget must 
be published in the official journal in the parish. 

All action necessary to adopt and implement the budget must be completed prior to the beginning of the 
fiscal year. Budgetary amendments involving the transfers of funds from one program or function to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated 
require the approval of the Sheriff. The Sheriff adopts necessary budget amendments when actual 
operations are different from those anticipated in the original budget, and they are made available for 
public inspection. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 2 

2018 
Total OPEB liability 

Service Cost 
Interest 

Difierences between ejected and actual e^erience 
Change in assiunption 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 

Total OPEB liability - ending (A) 

Plan Fiduciaiy net position 
Employer Contributions 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments 
Administratfi'e expense 

Net change in plan fiduciaiy net position 

Plan fiduciaiy net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciaiy net position - ending (B) 

$ 196,224 
904,584 
(244,207) 

(1,686,002) 
(509,357) 

(1,338,758) 

15,331,083 

$ 13,992,325 

471,632 

(10,000) 
461.632 

7,937,849 

8,399,481 

Net OPEB liability(asset) - ending (A)-(B) 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage oftotal OPEB liability 

Covered-Employee Payroll 

Net OPEB liability(asset) as a percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 

5,592,844 

60.03% 

12,150,306 

46.03% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefit Changes. There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended Jiuie 30, 2018. 

Changes of Assumptions. There were no changes of assiunptions for the year ended Jiuie 30, 2018. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Schedule of the Sheriffs OPEB Contributions 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 3 

2018 
Actuarially determined employer contribution 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 
Employer contributions to trust 
Employer-paid retiree premiums 509,357 

Contribution excess (deficiency) 

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 

733.334 

509.357 

223.977 

12,150,306 

4.19% 

Scheckile is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be 
displayed as they become available. 

Notes to schedule: 

Measiffement Date 

Valuation Date 
Timing 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Discount rate 

Payroll growth 

Inflation Rate 
Mortality rate 
Asset valuation method 
Healthcare cost trend rate 
Retirement Age 

Turnover 

6/30/2018 

7/1/2017 
Actuarially determined contribution rates are 
calculated based on actuarial valuation one year 
prior to beginning of plan year. 

Individual Entry Age Normal 

Level dollar, open 

30 years 
6.00% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 
6.00% annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
4.0% annually 
2.5% annually 

RP-2000 without projection, 50% luiisex blend 
Market Value 
Flat 5.5% annually 
5 years after the earliest of: 30 years of 
services; attainment of age 55 and 20 years of 
service; and, attainment of age 60 and 15 years 
of service 
Age specific table with an average of 15% 
when applied to the active census 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule 4 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Schedule of OPEB Investment Return 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net investment expenses 

2013 -0.16% 

2014 11.25% 
2015 0.44% 

2016 -0.71% 
2017 10.20% 

2018 5.95% 

Scheckile is intended to show information for 10 years. 

Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule 5 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Schedule of the Sheriffs Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
For the year ended June 30,2018 

Louiskia Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund: 

Enployer's Proportion ofthe Net Pension Liability (Assets) 

Enployer's Proportionate SJwe ofthe Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
Enployer's Covered-Enployee Payroll 
Enployer's Proportionate Slwe ofthe Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

as aPercentage ofits Covered-Enployee Payroll 

PlmFiduciayNet Position as a Percentage ofthe Totd Pension Liability 

2018 
2.1095350% 

62.5176% 

2017 2016 
1.8873507% 

$ 9,134,864 $ 11,977,873 
$14,611,670 $ 12,889,810 

92.9251% 

:.48758% 87.34470% 

I.757640% 

7,834,711 
II,652,728 

67.2350% 

86.60652% 

2015 
I.759819% 

6,968,892 
II,399,580 

61.1329% 

87.34472% 

• is intended to shosv infomationfor 10 years. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 

as they become 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Schedule of the Sheriff's Contributions 

Forthe year ended June 30,2018 

Schedule 6 

Louisiana Sheriffs Pension and Relief Fund: 

Contractual^ required contribution 

Contributions in relation to contractual^ required contributions 
Contribution deficiency (excess) 

2018 2017 
1,721,887 

1.721.887 

1,936,046 

1.936.046 

2016 
1,772,117 

1.772.117 

2015 
1,660,514 

1.660.514 

Eiiployer's Covered Eiiployee Payroll 

Contributions as a % of Covered Eiiployee Payroll 

13,504,065 

12.7509% 

14,611,670 

13.2500% 

12,889,810 

13.7482% 

11,652,728 

14.2500% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years w ill be displayed as they become available 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule 7 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Schedule of Changes in Balances Due to Taxing Bodies and Others - Fiduciary Agency Funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Agency Funds 

Tax Collector Inmate Deposit 
Sheriffs Fund Fund Fund Total 

Balances at Beginning of Year 3 ̂ 1,233,489 $ 31 3E ; 72,301 $ 1,305,821 

Additions 
Suits and Sales 6,025,413 - - 6,025,413 

Fines and Bonds 3,862,961 - - 3,862,961 

Advance Deposits 346,598 - - 346,598 

Garnishments 385,784 - - 385,784 

Property Taxes - 57,243,071 - 57,243,071 

Parish Occupational Licenses - 1,333,176 - 1,333,176 

State Revenue Sharing - 2,793,763 - 2,793,763 

Redenptions and Refunds - 862,133 - 862,133 

Interest on Delinquent Taxes 16,842 204,511 - 221,353 

Other - 225,723 987,927 1,213,650 

Total Additions 10,637,598 62,662,377 987,927 74,287,902 

Deductions 

By Funding Source 
Property Taxes - 56,780,168 - 56,780,168 

Parish Occupational Licenses - 1,261,464 - 1,261,464 

State Revenue Sharing - 2,793,763 - 2,793,763 

Redenptions and Refunds 641,894 864,415 - 1,506,309 

Eamed Interest - 200,333 - 200,333 

Proceeds of Sales of Property 4,824,797 - - 4,824,797 

By Location -

State ofLouisiana -

Livingston Parish -
Clerk of Court 514,000 - - 514,000 

Parish Council 221,819 - - 221,819 

Sheriff 1,381,482 15,092 - 1,396,574 

Twenty-first Judicial Disffict 2,140,630 - - 2,140,630 

Other Parties -

Advertising 186,400 - - 186,400 

Appraisers and Hewers 31,850 - - 31,850 

Attomeys and Litigants 343,872 - - 343,872 

Municpalities 235,575 - - 235,575 

Other 174,915 41,071 976,349 1,192,335 

State Crime Laboratory 6,068 - - 6,068 

LA Sipreme Court 3,431 - - 3,431 

Total Deductions 10,706,733 61,956,306 976,349 73,639,388 

Balances at End of Year $ 1,164,354 3E ; 706,102 $ 83,879 $ 1,954,335 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Tax Collector Account Affidavit Schedule 8 

TAX COLLECTOR ACCOUNT AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF LOUISIANA, I'ARISH OF LIVINGSTON 

AFFIDAVIT 

.lASON ARD, SHERIFF AND TAX COLLECTOR, OF LIVINGSTON PARISH, LOUISIANA 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally came and appeared, JASON ARD, the sheriff of 

LIVINGSTON PARISH, State of Louisiana, who after being duly sworn, deposed and said: 

The following information is true and correct: 

$270.41 is the amount of cash on hand in the tax collector account on JUNE 30, 2018; 

He further deposed and said: 

All itemized statements of the amount of taxes collected for tax year 2017, by taxing authority, are 

true and correct. 

All itemized statements of all taxes assessed and uncollected, which indicate the reasons for the 

failure to collect, by taxing authority, are true and correct. 

.Signature 
Sheriff of Livingston Parish 

SWORN to and subscribed before me. Notary, this day of • 2018, in my office in 
the Parish of Livingston, Town of Livingston, Louisiana. 

IJSignature) 

(Print), #_ 

Notan'E.jJ^^LPj MORSE, SR. , 
MoTftRY PUBLIC (Commission) 

MY COMMISSION 15 FOR LIFE 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule 9 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Agency Head Name: Jason Ard, Sheriff 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 160,338 

Benefits-Insurance 22,836 
Benefits-Retirement 21,558 
Employer Paid Payroll Taxes 2,469 
Travel-Per Diem 1,333 

Travel-Lodging 2,681 
Travel-Airfere 95 

Conference Registration Fees 1,010 

$ 212,320 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Summary of Auditor^s Results 

Financial Statements 

a. Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 
widi GAAP: 

Unmodified \E\ Qualified • 
Disclaimer • Adverse • 

b. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control: 
Material Weaknesses • Yes [El No Significant Deficiencies • Yes [El No 

Compliance: 
Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements • Yes IE) No 

Federal Awards - NA 

Internal Control over major federal Programs: 
Material Weaknesses • Yes • No Significant Deficiencies • Yes • No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: 
Unmodified • Qualified • 
Disclaimer • Adverse • 

Are there findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) 
• Yes • No 

Was a management letter issued? • Yes IE) No 

Identification of Major Programs: 

CFDA Number (s) Name of Federal Program (or Cluster) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: 

Is the auditee a 'low-risk' auditee, as defined by 0MB Circular A-133? • Yes • No 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Livingston, Louisiana 

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

None 

Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

None 

Section III Management Letter 

N/A 

This schedule was prepared by management. 
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www.tearacpa.com 

MEMBERS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Livingston, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Livingston Parish Sheriff, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Livingston Parish 
Sheriff's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Livingston Parish Sheriff's 
intemal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the piupose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Livingston Parish Sheriffs intemal conhrol. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Livingston Parish Sheriffs intemal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, diuing our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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BRUCE HARRELL & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

To Livingston Parish Sheriff 
Livingston, Louisiana 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuranee about whether the Livingston Parish Sheriffs fmaneial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its eomplianee with eertain provisions of laws, 
regulations, eontraets, and grant agreements, noneomplianee with whieh eould have a direet and material effeet on 
the determination of fmaneial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on eomplianee with those 
provisions was not an objeetive of our audit, and aeeordingly, we do not express sueh an opinion. The results of 
our tests diselosed no instanees of noneomplianee or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to deseribe the seope of our testing of internal eontrol and eomplianee and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effeetiveness of the entity's internal eontrol or on 
eomplianee. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in aeeordanee with Government Auditing 
Standards in eonsidering the entity's internal eontrol and eomplianee. Aeeordingly, this eommunieation is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Bruee Harrell & Company, CPAs 
A Professional Aeeounting Corporation 
Kentwood, Louisiana 

Deeember 28, 2018 

74 



Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Statewide Agreed-Upon Proeedures 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

BRUCE HARRELL & COMPANY 
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FAX: (985) 229-5951 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Independent Acconntant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procednres 

The Honorable Jason Ard 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 
And the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the proeedures enumerated below, whieh were agreed to by the Livingston Parish 
Sheriff (Entity) and the Legislative Auditor (LEA) on the eontrol and eomplianee (C/C) areas identified in 
the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Proeedures (SAUPs) for the fiseal period July 01, 2017 through June 
30, 2018. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUP's. 

This agreed-upon proeedures engagement was performed in aeeordanee with attestation standards 
established by the Ameriean Institute of Certified Publie Aeeountants and applieable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The suffieieney of these proeedures is solely the responsibility of the 
speeified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the suffieieney of the 
proeedures deseribed below either for the purpose for whieh this report has been requested or for any 
other purpose. 

The proeedures and assoeiated fmdings are as follows: 
There are no procedures and associated findings required for year 2 as it relates to Livingston 
Parish Sheriff. For year 1 statewide agreed-upon procedures, there were either no exceptions or 
no exceptions for which a compensating control was not in place when performing our 
engagement for year 2. 

We were not engaged to and did not eonduet an examination or review, the objeetive of whieh would be 
the expression of an opinion or eonelusion, respeetively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Aeeordingly, we do not express sueh an opinion or eonelusion. Had we performed additional proeedures, 
other matters might have eome to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to deseribe the seope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the eontrol or 
eomplianee. Aeeordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purposes. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LEA as a publie doeument. 

Bruee Harrell & Company, CPAs 
A Professional Aeeounting Corporation 
Kentwood, Louisiana 

Deeember 28, 2018 


